1983

Lolita Pentecost v. M.W. Harward, And John Doe I-ii : Brief of Appellant

ISSUE

The sole issue before the Court is whether Summary Judgment can be granted to a party simply on the grounds that no counter-affidavit was attached to the responding party's Memorandum in Opposition to granting of Summary Judgment.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This action was commenced by Plaintiff/Appellant with Verified Complaint for wrongful eviction and conversion of personal property filed in November of 1982.

Defendant/Respondant answered said complaint denying: of the material allegations of the Verified Complaint.

On January 24, 1983, Defendant/Respondant filed their Motion for Summary Judgment alleging fraud on behalf of Plaintiff/Appellant and stating Defendant/Respondant was an agent.

Plaintiff/Appellant responded on February 2, 1983 referring to the Verified Complaint which raised substantial and material issues of fact as well as raising the issue of proving "fraud".

The Fourth District Court handed down a judgment on February 23 granting Summary Judgment based on the grounds "...there appearing ...no counter-affidavit to controvert: [affidavit] of M.W. Harward."

Plaintiff/Appellant subsequently filed this appeal.

POINT I

NO AFFIDAVITS ARE REQUIRED UNDER RULE 56

Defendant/Respondant was not required to file an affidavit with their Motion for Summary Judgment:

"A party against whom a claim...is asserted...may...move with or without supporting affidavits for a summary judgment."
Rule 56(b) U.R.C.P.

The Rule further infers that affidavits are not necessary to grant or deny summary judgment:

"The judgment sought shall be rendered...if the pleadings...together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law.."
Rule 56(c) U.R.C.P. (emphasis added)

POINT II

PLAINTIFF/APPELLANT'S VERIFIED COMPLAINT SERVES AS AN

AFFIDAVIT UNDER RULE 56

Rule 56(e) requires that affidavit "shall be made on personal knowledge...[and] must set forth specific facts showing that there is a genuine issue for trial."

Plaintiff's verification on the Complaint sets forth facts in great detail, including the specific fact that (1) a valid lease was entered into, and (2) certain very specific items were converted by Defendant/Respondant.

The inference that a verified complaint would rise to the level necessary to prevent a Summary Judgment from being granted

is set forth in Dupler v. Yates:

"The record made by the defendant, in support of his motion for summary judgment, controverted the unverified allegations in the plaintiffs' amended complaint and therefore, in the absence of counteraffidavits, no genuine issues of material fact were created."

Dupler v. Yates, 351 P.2d 624 at 637

Since the complaint here was verified and the response Defendant/Respondant's Motion specifically made reference to those specific verified facts, a counter-affidavit did exist. The granting of the Summary Judgment was improper.

POINT III

DEFENDANT/APPELLANT'S OWN MOTION IS INSUFFICIENT AS A

MATTER OF LAW

Defendant/Appellant raises the issue of fraud for the first time in the pleadings. Neither his Motion nor the accompanying affidavit set forth the requirements laid down in Pace v. Parrish 247 P.2d 273 and therefore are insufficient to raise the issue let alone be granted summary judgment.

POINT IV

PLAINTIFF/APPELLANT HAS RAISED MATERIAL ISSUES OF FACT

AND LAW

Plaintiff/Appellant's specific facts sworn by her in her complaint and referred to in her response to Defendant/Appellant's Motion, together with the matters of fact present in the case and raised by Defendant/Appellant are

sufficient to defeat a Motion for Summary Judgment:

"A summary judgment is proper only if the pleadings, depositions, affidavits and admissions show that there is no genuine issue of material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law."

In re Williams' Estates, 10 U.(2d) 83,
348 P.2d 683 emphasis added

Plaintiff/Appellant is further entitled to have the evidence viewed in the light most favorable to her:

"A summary judgment must be supported by evidence, admission and inferences which, when viewed in the light most favorable to the loser,...

Bullock v. Deseret Dodge Truck Center,
11 U.(2d) 1, 354 P.2d 559

Further,

"...the record must be carefully scrutinized to see if that party presents allegations which, if true, would entitle him to judgment; if so, then summary judgment is improper.-

Rich v. McGovern, 551 P.2d 1266

CONCLUSION

Plaintiff/Appellant has set forth specific facts which are in controversy by Defendant/Respondant's own affidavit. These specific facts have been sworn to be Plaintiff/Appellant, under oath, and they thereby are sufficient to defeat Defendant/Respondant's Motion.

Defendant/Respondant has further raised issues of law which are also in controversy and which, as Plaintiff/Appellant alleges, are improperly pleaded.

Therefore, Plaintiff/Appellant is entitled to have the

Summary Judgment against Defendant M.W. Harward set aside and allow her to go forward on her complaint.