1983

Lolita Pentecost v. M.W. Harward, And John Doe I-ii : Brief of Respondent

ISSUES

The issue before the Court is whether the trial Court properly ruled no cause of action against Defendant/Respondant upon consideration of all the pleadings in the case.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The statement of facts presented herein purposely omits consideration of the basis of any tort or contract claim and deals solely with the facts that pertain to the basis for the finding by the trial Court of no cause of action against Defendant/Respondant.

Plaintiff/Appellant brought her cause of action (R-2 and 3) alleging wrongful eviction and did specifically allege that Defendant/Respondant was acting "...as manager of apartments..." and as "...agent..." in Paragraph 8 of her complaint. Plaintiff/Appellant's complaint made no allegation that Defendant/Respondant acted in any manner for himself or in any capacity other than "...as manager..." of the premises that Plaintiff/Appellant allegedly leased.

Defendant/Respondant answered the complaint (R-10 and 11) and specifically admitted that he had acted "...as manager..." of the premises in his response to Paragraph 8 of the complaint. Paragraph 3 of his answer also made the specific allegation that he "...was an agent for the owner of the property."

In response to Plaintiff/Appellant's Fourth Interrogatory, Defendant/respondant's answer was that he retained the Plaintiff/Appellant's personal property "...[o]nly as an agent for the owner of the apartment..."

Defendant/Respondant filed his Motion for Summary Judgment (R-20) giving notice in Paragraph 2 that the allegations contained in Plaintiff/Appellant's complaint did not state a cause of action against him because he was acting as agent for the owner of the property and supported the motion by way of an affidavit (R-21) that he had functioned as an agent for the owner of the property.

Nothing in the Record raised an issue with regard to the capacity of Defendant/Respondant as agent for the property owner, and the trial Court properly applied that fact to the law (R-30 and 31)

POINT I

THERE IS NO MATERIAL ISSUE OF FACT

Defendant/Respondant takes no issue with the statement made in Point I of Plaintiff/Appellant's brief; however, the question is whether the trial Court, in accordance with Rule 56 (c), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, appropriately found that "...the pleadings...together with the affidavits...show there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law..." (Rule 56 (c) U.R.C.P.) The issue of Defendant/Respondant's capacity is undisputed.

POINT II

THERE IS NO BASIS FOR A CAUSE OF ACTION AGAINST DEFENDANT/RESPONDANT

A review of Plaintiff/Appellant's complaint (R-2 and 3) is necessary to determine the purpose of each allegation.

a) Paragraph 1 is presumably a jurisdictional fact which is not necessary in this case.

b) Paragraph 2 alleges facts that first have venue ramifications and which, when supported by the summons (R-8) and the Substitute Service Return (R-9) make out a basis for personal jurisdiction over Defendant/Respondant.

c) Paragraph 3 alleges the fact of a lease agreement which purports to create the relationship of Lessor-Lessee;

however the term "Defendant" is used in the singular and makes no specific effort to identify to which of the named defendants in the caption the allegation applies.

d) Paragraphs 4, 5, 6, and 7 allege facts which, if supported by evidence, would serve as the legal basis for liability.

e) Paragraph 8 contains the only allegation that attempts to name the person who was to be held liable under the theory propounded in Paragraphs 4, 5, 6, and 7, and that allegation is one of exoneration of Defendant/Respondant as an individual.

f) Paragraph 9 falls short, but is only Plaintiff/Appellant's effort to identify the "John Doe I-III" named as defendants but without further description.

g) Paragraphs 10 and 11 make allegation that would give notice of the measure of damages sought.

The trial Court must find, and in a logical sequence, the following:

a) That it has jurisdiction over the subject matter of the lawsuit. Defendant/Respondant concedes that the district Court does have jurisdiction over the subject matter of this lawsuit.

b) That it has in personam jurisdiction over the Defendant. The allegation in Paragraph 2 of the complaint, the Summons and Substitute Service Return along with the Answer (R-10) establish absolutely that the Court has the authority to render a personal judgment against Defendant/Respondant if the claim for liability is supported by evidence.

c) That there is a legal basis for holding Defendant/Respondant personally liable under the theory of recovery alleged by Plaintiff/Appellant. It is here that Defendant/Respondant M.W. Harward asserts that there is no legal basis, based upon undisputed facts, to find a cause of action against him in his individual capacity. He is alleged in the complaint to be "... manager" and "agent", he answers an admission to that allegation, and in his affidavit he deposes that he was indeed an agent and did function in an agency capacity. Nor did the complaint make any allegation of fact that would serve to show a basis for personal liability against him.

d) That there is a legal theory upon which liability may be based. Here there are genuine issues of fact.

e) That a damage has been suffered. Here also there are genuine issues of fact.

The trial Court was not asked to rule on whether it ha

jurisdiction over the subject matter of the lawsuit or whether it had jurisdiction over Defendant/Respondant. It was asked, as the consequence of his motion for summary judgment, to determine whether there was any legal basis, considering only the pleadings, and even assuming that the theory of liability and damages could be proved, to hold Defendant/Respondant personally liable. Because of the existence of allegations that his legal capacity was only as an agent and of the absence of allegations showing he acted in a personal capacity the trial Court properly found no cause of action against the only defendant who was before it.

If this matter were to go to trial on the issues as framed in the pleadings, and if the Plaintiff/Appellant were to prevail on the issues of liability and damages, there would be no one before the trial Court against whom the judgment could be imposed.

POINT III

DEFENDANT/RESPONDANT WAS ACTING
AS THE DISCLOSED AGENT OF THE
OWNER OF THE PROPERTY UNDER A
CONTRACT WITH PLAINTIFF/APPELLANT

The Plaintiff/Appellant's statement of the kind of case makes reference to a landlord/tenant relationship which places the liability theories in the area of contract law rather than tort

law. There is no allegation in the complaint (R-2 through 5) claiming that any alleged actions of Defendant/Respondant were outside the scope of his authority as agent for the property owner. The complaint, as recited earlier, states that Defendant/Respondant was "manager" and "agent of the owner" thereby serving as an acknowledgement of his agency capacity.

3 Am Jur 2nd Agency §294, states the general rule of law that:

An agent is not liable for lawful acts done within the scope of his authority for and in behalf of a disclosed principal. (See pocket part)

There is no allegation that the acts of Defendant/Respondant, as alleged in the complaint, were beyond the scope of his authority as agent for the owner of the property. This, of course, follows the basic rule of agency law that: